
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email:  susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 18 October 2017 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 25 October 2017 at 10.00 am, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Mohammad Ayub, Loraine Cox, Abdul Khan and Kath Pratt 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 6th September 2017 for approval as a correct record. 
 

4.   Transforming Care - NHS England  (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
To provide Members with an update on NHS England’s Transforming Care. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

5.   Veterans Association UK   
 
To receive a presentation on the service provided by the Veterans Association UK. 
 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Mohammad Ayub and 
Loraine Cox 
Cooptees  
 

In Attendance: Councillors  

  

Apologies: Abdul Khan and Kath Pratt 
 

 
411 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Pratt and Khan.  There were 
no substitutions for absence.   
 

412 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations submitted. 
 

413 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday, 17th March, 2017 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
  
Recommended        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

414 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2017-18 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
for the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2017/18 for 
approval.  He reported on the feedback the work programme had received from Cabinet 
and informed the Committee that an additional item, Care Navigation Pilot, had been 
requested for placing on the work programme.   
 
Resolved - That the work programme for the Communities and 

Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2017/18 
be approved with the addition of a further item ‘Care 
Navigation Pilot’. 

 
415 Personal Independence Payments  -  Statistics for Hyndburn 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to update the Committee on local 
issues relating to Personal Independence Payments (PIPs).  The Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer reported that a representative of the Department of Works and Pensions had been 
invited to attend the Committee to discuss Personal Independence Payments (PIPs) but the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

invitation had been declined.  He reported that they had been directed to publicly accessible 
information on the organisation’s website and informed that the Department of Works and 
Pensions would be willing to answer any questions derived from the Committee meeting.   
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer outlined what PIPs were and details were given of the 
available data on the number of claims submitted and those that had been refused and 
gone to appeal.  He referred to the large number of reassessments that had taken place 
and subsequently been approved and pointed out that concern had been raised about this 
both nationally and locally as well as the length of time taken to process a PIP application.  
He reported that the Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee had submitted a Freedom of Information request to the Department of Works 
and Pensions seeking data relating to mandatory reconsiderations at Hyndburn level and 
on receipt of response would keep other Committee members informed.   
 
The following questions were submitted to be referred for response to the Department of 
Works and Pensions: 
 

 Mandatory reconsiderations are the first stage of an appeal, how many go on to 
ultimately take the appeal to Court? 

 

 Are those assessing application forms on the basis of medical information 
adequately qualified to do so?    

 
Members of the Committee expressed their disappointment that representatives from the 
Department of Works and Pensions were not present at the meeting to respond to 
Members’ questions.  They also accepted that the length of time it took to process a PIP 
application was unacceptable. 

Resolved (1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer conveys the 
Committee’s disappointment to the Department of 
Works and Pensions that a representative could not 
attend the Committee meeting and that they considered 
the length of time it took to process a PIP application 
unacceptable; and 

 (2) That the questions, as set out in the minutes above, 
were submitted to the Department of Works and 
Pensions for response. 

   
 
 
 
 

416 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

417 Disabled Facility Grants Update 
 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 - 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Regeneration and Property Manager submitted a report to update the Communities 
and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the delivery of Disabled Facilities 
Grants.  She provided an overview of the process for disabled facilities grants which 
included the initial assessment of need by an Occupational Therapists before being referred 
back, with a recommendation, to the Council who would then send the Adaptations Officer 
to visit the home and carry out a means test (criteria as set out by the Government).  She 
reported that the Council had 6 months to award the grant once the applicant had satisfied 
the criteria and a completed application form had been received.  She explained that 
approved applicants could choose if the adaptation works were carried out by the Council 
or privately and that they would be given 12 months to carry out these works.  She informed 
the Committee that previous delays in processing applications had been due to a lack of 
Occupational Therapists (due to cost cuts) but Lancashire County Council were now trying 
to recruit to fill vacant posts.  She indicated that there were only 21 jobs in the system to be 
dealt with in Hyndburn and that they were currently working with Lancashire County Council 
to raise the profile of grants. 
 
Advanced questions were submitted by Members of the Committee and responses were 
given as follows: 
 

 Hyndburn Borough Council took the decision of if an award should be granted. 

 The Government set the parameters across England and Wales based on individual 
needs.   

 There had never been a failure to meet targets because the 6 month deadline only 
began once the application had been approved. 

 The Occupational Therapists would be expected to prioritise emergency 
applications. 

 The 15% fee to employ the Council was included in the grant. 

 Twenty-one jobs were on the waiting list for Hyndburn. 

 The Council was already taking appropriate action to reduce delays but there had 
been a slow-down in referrals and Lancashire County Council were presently trying 
to recruit Occupational Therapists. 

 She agreed that unspent money could always be withdrawn and explained that they 
would not made aware of this until nearer the financial year end and that they 
wanted to spend all the funding they got. 
 

The Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Officer agreed to raise 
awareness of the disabled facilities grants. 

Resolved (1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer writes a letter to 
Lancashire County Council to raise awareness of the 
importance of recruiting Occupational Therapists as 
soon as possible to aid the process of dealing with 
disabled facilities grant application forms; and 

 (2) That the Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee raises the issue of 
speeding up the process of dealing with applications for 
disabled facilities grants at the County’s Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

                               (3) That the Overview and Scrutiny Officer raises the issue 
of promoting the availability of disabled facilities grants 
with the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) to 
ensure all those in need are made aware of the grants. 

 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 6



 

 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 25 October 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Transforming Care – NHS England  

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide members with an update on NHS England’s Transforming Care. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the 

presentation from NHS England. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 In 2016/17, this Committee received presentations from NHS England on 28th June 

2016 and 7th February 2017. Meetings related to the “Consultation for the proposed 
redesign of learning disability and autistic spectrum disorder services in the North 
West.” The proposed redesign of services had direct implications for Mersey Care 
Whalley (Formally Calderstones). NHS England’s preferred option involved the 
removal of both medium and low secure services from the Calderstones site. 

 
3.2 At the time, this committee opposed this option and instead supported option 2B, which 

involved some services (totalling 56 beds) remaining at Mersey Care Whalley. The 
Committee made the following resolutions: 

 
(1)  That the Committee recommends that Hyndburn Borough Council supports 
Option 2B as set out in the ‘Consultation for the Proposed Redesign of Learning 
Disability and Autistic Spectrum Disorder Services in the North West’; 

 
(2)  That the Committee’s disappointment be noted in the consultation process 
and the lack of reflection of the true service provided by Mersey Care Whalley in 
the consultation; 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

 
(3)  That it be noted that there was still a requirement for low secure care at 
Mersey Care Whalley; and 

 
(4)  That the Chair of the Committee, with the Support from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer, provides a full response to the consultation which expresses 
the views and concerns of the Committee. 

 
3.3 The committee responded to the consultation as detailed above. After analysing all 

responses to the consultation, the decision was made to choose option 1: To move all 
low and medium secure services off the Mersey Care Whalley site. 

 
3.4 NHS England have requested to come back to the Committee to provide an update, 

and will be presenting to the Committee.  
 
3.5 Links to the minutes of previous meetings are included in section 7. 
 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None directly relating to this meeting.  
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Not applicable – none arising directly from 
this report. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable  

 

 

Page 8

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 28th June 2016 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=1487 

 
7.2 Agenda, reports and minutes of Council on 7th July 2016 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver
=4 

 
7.3 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 7th February 2017 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2204&Ver
=4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=1487
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1060&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2204&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2204&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



www.england.nhs.uk

Transforming Care:

Visit to Hyndburn Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee 

October  2017

P
age 11



www.england.nhs.uk 2

Contents

1. Introduction 

2. Interaction throughout the consultation

3. Results of the consultation

4. Current position

P
age 12



www.england.nhs.uk

The aim of the presentation is to:

• Explain the level of interaction with the public and 

professional bodies throughout the consultation 

process.

• Outline the result of the consultation and discuss 

some feedback from key consultees.

• Describe what the current position is.

• Offer an opportunity to ask questions and collect 

your views to inform the next step in the process

3

1 Introduction

P
age 13



www.england.nhs.uk

• We had 380 key stakeholders who were regularly contacted throughout 

the consultation with information on updates relating to it, and also how to 

take part.

• We visited numerous governing authorities which included health and 

wellbeing boards, overview and scrutiny committees and healthwatches.

• We also visited Mersey Care Whalley several times to speak to service 

users across all the wards to hear the views on the consultation. We then 

held a series of events with staff and carers to discuss any issues or 

concerns they may have had.

• All views received at these meetings were documented in an activity log 

which was sent to the independent evaluators once the consultation had 

finished. 

4

2. Interaction throughout the 

consultation 

P
age 14



www.england.nhs.uk

• We received over 600 responses to the consultation via our online survey 
which included the views of service users, families of service users plus staff 
and carers at the Whalley Site. 

• We also received a number of written responses, mostly from Healthcare 
providers, local government authorities and advocate groups who specialise 
in the care of those with LD and/or autism.

• All of the responses received were sent to Participate, the individual 
evaluators, who analysed the responses and produced a report . The leads 
of the consultation then made their own recommendations based on that 
report which then went before a panel of NHS England national directors.

• The panel of directors then made the decision and chose option 1:            
To move all low and medium secure services off the Mersey Care 
Whalley site.

5

3.  Results of the consultation

P
age 15



www.england.nhs.uk

• MSU location in the North West 40 places

• LSU location in the North West 70 places

15 Autism places at Alderley CWP

15 Longer term at Elysium 

40 Female/Male places yet to be formally 

agreed

• Timescales for the changes

• New Clinical Model

6

4.   Current position 

P
age 16


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Transforming Care - NHS England
	Consultation presentation slides


